
 

Commission Meeting 
1st Monthly Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023, 1:00 p.m. 

Point Hudson Pavilion Building, 355 Hudson Street, Port Townsend, & via Zoom 
https://zoom.us/ – or call (253) 215-8782 – and use Webinar ID: 862 6904 3651, Password: 

911887 

I. Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance
II. Approval of Agenda
III. Public Comments

IV. Consent Agenda
A. Approval of Special Meeting & Regular Business Meeting Minutes from

 March 22, 2023 ...................................................................................................2-5 
B. Approval & Ratification of Warrants ......................................................................6-25 
C. Scheall-Townshend Lease Assignment & Amendment No. 2 .................................26-55 
D. U.S. Coast Guard Supplemental Lease Agreement No. 0003 .................................56-61 
E. Jochems Property Management Lease Amendment No. 3 ....................................62 

V. Second Reading
A. Updated Organizational Chart ................................................................................63-67 

VI. First Reading ~ none

VII. Regular Business
A. February 2023 Year-to-Date Financials ..................................................................68-73 

VIII. Staff Comments

IX. Commissioner Comments

X. Next Meetings are

Wednesday and Thursday, April 19/20, 2023 from 9-3p.m., Wednesday, April 26, 2023 at
5:30 p.m.

XI. Executive Session

XII. Adjournment

Informational Items ...............................................................................................................74 
• February 2023 Detailed Financials .............................................................................75-78 
• Contract Update/Lease Brief  ....................................................................................79-88 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86269043651?pwd=MDlybTZHSmxaRW5BMW1CajdOTUJHUT09


PoPT Commission Meeting Minutes 20230322-Comm.Spec.Mtg.Mins.docx 

PORT COMMISSION SPECIAL BUSINESS MEETING – Wednesday, March 22, 2023 

The Port of Port Townsend Commission met for a special business session at the Point Hudson 
Pavilion Building, 355 Hudson Street, Port Townsend, and also online via Zoom. 

Present: Commissioners Hanke appearing virtually, with Petranek and Hasse in person 
Director of Finance and Administration Abigail Berg 
Port Recorder Sanders 

I. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Rec. 00:00:00)
Commissioner Petranek called the meeting to order at 4:33 p.m.

II. Executive Session (Rec. 00:00:58)

At 4:33 p.m., the Commission recessed into Executive Session until 5:15 p.m. for Purposes of
Reviewing the Performance of a Public Employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) with no
decision expected.

At 5:15 p.m., the Commission came back into open session.

III. ADJOURNMENT (Rec.  00:28:40)

The meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m., there being no further business before the Commission.

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Pamela A. Petranek, President 

_________________________________ 
Peter W. Hanke, Secretary 

_________________________________ 
Carol L. Hasse, Vice President 

Page 2 of 88



PoPT Commission Meeting Minutes 20230322-Comm.Mtg.Mins.docx 

PORT COMMISSION REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING – Wednesday, March 22, 2023 

The Port of Port Townsend Commission met for a regular business session at the Point Hudson 
Pavilion Building, 355 Hudson Street, Port Townsend, and also online via Zoom. 

Present: Commissioners Hanke (appearing virtually) with Petranek and Hasse in person 
Executive Director Eron Berg 
Director of Finance and Administration Abigail Berg 
Harbormaster Kristian Ferrero  
Operations Manager Chris Sparks 
Attorney Seth Woolsen 
Port Recorder Joanna Sanders 

I. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Rec. 00:00:00)
Commissioner Petranek called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Rec. 00:00:58)
The agenda was approved by unanimous consent with the removal of the executive
session.

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS – GENERAL (Rec. 00:01:32)

There were none presented in writing or in person.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA (Rec. 00:02:43)
A. Approval of Workshop & Business Meeting Minutes from March 8, 2023
B. Approval & Ratification of Warrants

Warrant #066511 in the amount of $45,594.35
Warrant #066512 in the amount of $28,911.50 
Warrant 066513 through 066569 in the amount of $134,355.05 
Warrant #066570 through 066573 in the amount of $6,680.28 and electronic payments 
in the total amount of $113,419.07 
Warrant #066574 in the amount of $2,267.00 
Wire Approval – Jefferson County Treasurer Orion Marine Contractor’s Pay Estimate 
#05 in the amount of $332,332.03 

C. Interlocal Agreement (ILA) between the Port of Port Townsend & Jefferson County
concerning early closure of the Moderate Risk Waste (MRW) Facility

D. Resolution 789-23 Designating the Executive Director to Administer the Port’s Previously
Promulgated Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program

E. Authorization for Execution of Grant Agreement for American Rescue Plan Act Funds
for the Port’s Port Townsend Water Walk

The Consent Agenda was approved as written by unanimous consent. Commissioners 
had questions about the Moderate Risk Waste facility and the Disadvantaged Business 
Program. Staff gave abbreviated updates on these items.  

V. SECOND READING ~ none

VI. FIRST READING

Page 3 of 88



Port Commission Regular Business Meeting, March 22, 2023 pg. 2 

PoPT Commission Meeting Minutes 20230322-Comm.Mtg.Mins.docx 

A. Updated Organizational Chart. (Rec. 00:08:43)
Executive Director Eron Berg reported on the need to increase engineering staff to help
manage capital projects. He explained the budgeted thirteen capital projects under way as
listed in the memorandum and about the work necessary to administer the capital projects.
The alternative to increased staffing would be to reduce the number of projects.

Capital Projects and Port Engineer Matt Klontz and Finance Director Abigail Berg spoke
about IDD funding and the importance of adhering to the schedule for project 
deliverables and overseeing contracted work.  

Commissioners:  There was recognition of the efforts needed to manage projects. Some 
questions arose as to how this hire might impact rates, benefit the existing Port lessees, 
and/or necessitate additional maintenance and finance staffing. A minor change to the 
organizational chart was also noted in the reporting structure under the operations 
manager which staff noted would be reflected in the next packet. “Confessions of a 
recovering engineer” was a recommended book by Commissioner Petranek. 

Executive Director Berg explained the mutual benefits for taxpayers and tenants to the 
planned projects. He does not foresee impacts to the rates because the additional engineer 
would be working on IDD funded projects.  

VII. REGULAR BUSINESS (Rec. 00:31:39) - None

VIII. STAFF COMMENTS (Rec. 00:31:40)

Executive Director Eron Berg reported on the following:  A Jefferson Transit seat is available
to a Port representative. The boatyard is undergoing a shift in the long-term storage yard with
some clean up, boat demolition, and maintenance work. The area would be available for 75-
ton lift accessible boats. The former MRW area is now used to block boats. Staff further
explained that the storage rate increase discouraged some boats from staying. Recycling and
reclaiming material from demolished vessels were discussed briefly. Berg noted that an
accessible rail line or large-scale events would likely be required to make recycling financially
feasible.

Capital Projects and Port Engineer Matt Klontz reported the next West Boatyard Expansion
Stakeholder Meeting is on Wednesday. Next week, the advertisement will be posted for bid
proposals to construct the new taxiway with the bid opening in mid to late April.

IX. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS (Rec. 00:49:58)
Commissioner Hanke commented on improvements to the long term storage yard. In asking
about the taxiway connector, Capital Projects/Port Engineer Klontz reported that staff is
checking with the FAA to do stormwater improvements to the infield area. However,
technically, that work would be outside the current project.

Commissioner Petranek commented on her attendance at the First Aid at Sea class yesterday.
This Saturday is the Chambers Leadership Award. Pete and Kathy Langley have been
nominated as business leaders of the year. She has scheduled an appointment for a stakeholder
interview as part of the Jefferson Countywide strategic planning project.

Page 4 of 88



Port Commission Regular Business Meeting, March 22, 2023 pg. 3 

PoPT Commission Meeting Minutes 20230322-Comm.Mtg.Mins.docx 

Commissioner Hasse recognized Commissioner Petranek for the recent Working Waterfront 
episode on the large schooners. She attended a Chamber Event where Al Cairns presented on 
the topic of outgrowing our current County transfer facility and she is interested in what role 
the Port might play in reducing, reusing, and recycling.  

X. NEXT PUBLIC WORKSHOP & REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING (Rec. 00:55:34)

Next Public Workshop and Regular Business Meeting:  Wednesday, April 12, 2023 at Pavilion
Building and via Zoom, with Public Workshop at 9:30 a.m. and Regular Business Meeting at
1:00 p.m.

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION (Rec. 00:55:36) - none

XII. ADJOURNMENT (Rec.  00:55:45):  meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m., there being no further
business before the Commission.

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Pamela A. Petranek, President 

_________________________________ 
Peter W. Hanke, Secretary 

_________________________________ 
Carol L. Hasse, Vice President 

Page 5 of 88



Page 6 of 88



Page 7 of 88



Page 8 of 88



Page 9 of 88



Page 10 of 88



Page 11 of 88



Page 12 of 88



Page 13 of 88



Page 14 of 88



Page 15 of 88



Page 16 of 88



Page 17 of 88



Page 18 of 88



Page 19 of 88



Page 20 of 88



Page 21 of 88



Page 22 of 88



Page 23 of 88



Page 24 of 88



Page 25 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
AGENDA COVER SHEET 

MEETING DATE April 12, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM ☒ Consent Agenda

AGENDA TITLE IV. C. Scheall/Townshend Lease Assignment and Amendment No. 2

STAFF LEAD Eric Toews, Deputy Director 

REQUESTED ☐ Information ☒ Motion/Action ☐ Discussion

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Staff Memo
B. Sheall/Townshend Lease Assignment and Amendment No. 2
C. Exhibit ‘A” - Daniel Scheall March 1, 2006, Lease
D. Exhibit ‘B’ Daniel Scheall July 11, 2014, Lease Amendment No. 1

Page 26 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
 INFORMATIONAL MEMO  
 

SCHEALL-TOWNSHEND JCIA  APRIL 12, 2023 
LAND LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT 

DATE: 4/12/2023 

TO: Port Commission 

FROM: Eric Toews, Deputy Director and Sue Nelson, Lease & Contracts Administrator 

SUBJECT: Daniel Scheall to Brendon Townshend Lease Assignment and Amendment No. 2 
 

 
BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION:  In the mid-2000s, seven portable T-hangars were situated on pad sites 
generally located to the north of runway 9/27 at JCIA.  In 2006 the T-Hangar pads were relocated to the 
far northwestern perimeter of the developed hangar area.  Five (5) of the seven (7) hangar pads are 
subject to month-to-month agreements, while two (2) are governed under longer term lease 
agreements, including that of Mr. Daniel Scheall.   
 
Mr. Scheall’s hangar pad lease agreement for T-Hangar Pad #402-O dates to 2006.  The original lease 
term was ten (10) years.  However, in July of 2014, the lease was amended to extend the term through 
February 28, 2026.  Mr. Scheall moved to Oregon some years ago, and no longer has the need for a 
hangar at the JCIA.  In March of this year, Mr. Scheall sold the T-Hangar upon the leased premises to Mr. 
Brendon Townshend.  Mr. Scheall now wishes to formally assign his lease, as amended, to Mr. 
Townshend.  The lease contains language requiring Port consent to any sublease or assignment, and 
states that the Port “shall not unreasonably withhold consent to the assignment . . . “ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize the Executive Director to execute the attached Lease Assignment and 
Amendment No. 2, from Daniel Scheall to Brendon Townshend. 
 
MOTION:  None required.  Approval of this item on the Consent Agenda authorizes the Executive 
Director to execute the attached Lease Assignment and Lease Amendment No. 2.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Daniel Scheall to Brendon Townshend Lease Assignment and Amendment No. 2, and 
Townshend Exhibits A & B 

• Daniel Scheall Land Lease, Exhibit ‘A’ 
• Daniel Schell Lease Amendment No. 1, Exhibit ‘B’ 

Page 27 of 88



SCHEALL/TOWNSHEND   APRIL 2023 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT #2 

1 

ASSIGNMENT & SECOND AMENDMENT OF LAND LEASE 
JEFFERSON COUNTY INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

THIS ASSIGNMENT & SECOND AMENDMENT OF LAND LEASE is dated this ____ day of 
_________ 2023, by and between DANIEL SCHEALL ("Assignor"), and BRENDON TOWNSHEND, 
(“Assignee”), with a hangar pad location identified as T-Hangar Site Pad T-402, “O”)” at the 
Jefferson County International Airport in Port Townsend, WA.  

WHEREAS, The PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND (“Lessor” or “Port”), a Washington Municipal 
Corporation, and DANIEL SCHEALL entered into that certain LAND LEASE dated September 1, 
2005, for certain premises (the “Premises”) located at the Jefferson County International 
Airport, Port Townsend, Washington, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the “Original Lease”); and 

WHEREAS, The Original Lease was amended on July 11, 2014, which document is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference (“Lease Amendment 
#1”); and 

WHEREAS, Together, Exhibits “A” (the Original Lease), and “B” (the Second Amendment 
of Lease) comprise the “Lease”; and  

WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign its interest in the Lease to Assignee, and Assignee 
desires to assume Assignor’s obligations under the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, Paragraph #16 of the Lease provides that the Assignor’s interest in the Lease 
may not be assigned unless Lessor grants its written consent to any such assignment, 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, Assignor and Assignee agree, and Lessor consents, as follows: 

1. Recitals Incorporated:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into and made a
part of this Assignment, including all defined terms referenced therein, with the same force and
effect as if the same were herein repeated fully and at length.  Capitalized terms used herein
but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Lease.

2. Assignment of Lease:  Assignor does hereby transfer, assign, convey and deliver to
Assignee its entire right, title and interest in the Lease and the Premises.

3. Assumption of Obligations:  Assignee does hereby accept this assignment and, for the
benefit of Assignor and Lessor, expressly assumes and agrees to hereafter perform all the
terms, covenants, conditions, and obligations of Assignor under the Lease, which accrue from
and after the date hereof.  Assignee has been furnished with copies of the Lease (Exhibits “A”

Page 28 of 88



SCHEALL/TOWNSHEND   APRIL 2023 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT #2   

2 

and “B”), respectively, has reviewed the terms of the same, and understands all of the terms of 
the Lease. 
 
4. Indemnity:  Assignor agrees to save, indemnify, defend, and hold Assignee harmless 
from and on account of any claims, demands, actions, losses, expenses, and liabilities of 
Assignee under the Lease on account of or arising out of any obligations and liabilities of the 
Assignee thereunder, arising prior to the date hereof. 
 Assignee agrees to save, indemnify, defend, and hold Assignor harmless from and on 
account of any claims, demands, actions, losses, expenses, and liabilities of Assignor under the 
Lease on account of or arising out of the obligations and liabilities so assumed and arising after 
the date hereof. 
 
5. Lessor Acknowledgement:  By executing this Assignment and Amendment #2, Lessor 
expressly acknowledges the following: 

a. That all rents, royalties, penalties, assessments, taxes, and charges of any kind owing 
to Lessor arising out of the Lease have been timely paid, that no such rents, 
royalties, penalties, assessments, taxes, or charges that have accrued to date hereof 
are unpaid, and that to the best of Lessor’s knowledge there are no rents, penalties, 
assessments, taxes, or charges of any kind contemplated by Lessor to be imposed on 
or after the date hereof that are not specified in the Lease; 

b. That Assignor is not in default or violation of any provision of the Lease; 
c. That the Lease is in effect in accordance with its terms; and 
d. That the Lease is enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 
6. Successors and Assigns:  This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the 
parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
7. Concurrent Amendment of Lease Paragraphs 4 and 29:  Paragraph 4, “DEPOSIT”, and 
Paragraph 29, NOTICES of the Lease, are hereby deleted in their entirety and replaced with the 
following: 
 

4. DEPOSIT:  Lessee shall deposit with the Port security in the amount of One 
Hundred Forty-Three Dollars and Thirty-Eight Cents ($143.38).1  Annually throughout the 
lease term the amount deposited with the Port shall be adjusted to ensure that an amount 
equivalent to two (2) months’ then current rent plus applicable taxes maintained as 
security.  The deposit shall be held by the Port as security for Lessee’s faithful performance 
of all its obligations under this Lease.  Any interest earned on amounts deposited shall be 
retained by the Port.  The deposit shall be returned to Lessee upon termination of this 
Lease, less any charges owing to the Port or expenses incurred by the Port in repairing 
damage caused by Lessee or restoring the leased premises to the condition required upon 
termination of this Lease. 
 

 
1 Security deposit calculated as follows:  $63.53 per month rent x 2 = $127.06; $127.06 x 12.84% LHT = $16.32; $127.06 + $16.32 = $143.38. 

Page 29 of 88



SCHEALL/TOWNSHEND   APRIL 2023 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT #2   

3 

29. NOTICES:  All notices hereunder may be delivered or mailed.  If mailed, they 
shall be sent by certified or registered mail to the following respective addresses: 
 

To Lessor: 
THE PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
c/o Lease & Contracts Administrator 
P.O. Box 1180 
Port Townsend, WA 98368 

 
To Lessee: 

BRENDON TOWNSHEND 
3222 S. Edmunds Street 
Seattle, WA 98118 
(509) 481-1367 

 
All other terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain unchanged and in effect. 
 
This Assignment & Second Amendment of Land Lease is authorized by the Port of Port Townsend 
Port Commission on the 12th day of April 2023, executed by the parties this ___ day of April 2023, 
and effective upon the receipt of a deposit and liability insurance documentation from the 
Assignee. 
 
ASSIGNOR – DANIEL SCHEALL: 
 
 
______________________________  
by Daniel Scheall 
 
ASSIGNEE – BRENDON TOWNSHEND 
 
 
______________________________ 
Brendon Townshend 
 
 
LESSOR – PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND: 
 
The Port of Port Townsend, as owner and holder of all right, title and interest under the Lease 
hereby approves the foregoing assignment and amendment. 
 
 
______________________________  
Eron Berg, Executive Director 

Page 30 of 88



SCHEALL/TOWNSHEND   APRIL 2023 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT #2   

4 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________  
Eric Toews, Port Attorney  

Page 31 of 88



SCHEALL/TOWNSHEND   APRIL 2023 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT #2   

5 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Daniel Scheall signed this instrument and 
that he/she is authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and 
voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 

Dated:  ____________________  
 

 
Signature of 
Notary Public:  ______________________________ 
 
 
My Appointment Expires:  ______________________________ 

  

Page 32 of 88



SCHEALL/TOWNSHEND   APRIL 2023 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT #2   

6 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Brendon Townshend signed this instrument 
and that he/she is authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free 
and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 

Dated:  ____________________  
 

 
Signature of 
Notary Public:  ______________________________ 
 
 
My Appointment Expires:  ______________________________ 

  

Page 33 of 88



SCHEALL/TOWNSHEND   APRIL 2023 
LEASE ASSIGNMENT & AMENDMENT #2   

7 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Eron Berg signed this instrument and that 
he/she is authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and 
voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 

Dated:  ____________________  
 

 
Signature of 
Notary Public:  ______________________________ 
 
 
My Appointment Expires:  ______________________________ 

Page 34 of 88



Page 35 of 88



 

 
Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement  
Attachments No. 1 and 2 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES WARRANTY AND AGREEMENT 

 
RIDER TO LEASE AGREEMENT DATED:  MARCH 1, 2006, BETWEEN THE PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
and DANIEL SCHEALL, AND LEASE ASSIGNMENT DATED ___________, 2023 BETWEEN THE PORT 
OF PORT TOWNSEND AND BRENDON TOWNSHEND. 
 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED THAT THE LEASE AGREEMENT IDENTIFIED ABOVE SHALL BE 
SUPPLEMENTED AND MODIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES ON PREMISES.  Without the express written permission of 

Lessor, Lessee shall not store, use or have present on or adjacent to the premises any 
hazardous or toxic substances, including those substances defined as "hazardous" or 
"extremely hazardous" under federal or Washington State environmental statutes or 
regulation (including but not limited to 42 USC 9601 et seq., 40 CFR Part 302, RCW Chapter 
70.105D.020 and WAC 173-340-200, and any successor statutes and regulation), except as 
follows: _________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________  

 
2. STORAGE AND USE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES.  Lessee agrees at all times to restrict its 

storage and use of substances identified in Paragraph 1 to the inside of the permanent 
building(s) at the premises, and specifically to those locations within such buildings(s) 
having concrete flooring or such other impermeable flooring as Lessor may in its sole 
discretion approve in writing upon request by Lessee. 

 
3.  HANDLING AND DISPOSAL.  The Lessee agrees to use said substances identified in 

paragraph 2 only on areas which have impermeable surfaces and or other means for 
preventing accidental contract by such substances with the soils upon the leasehold or its 
surrounding area. 

 
4. RELEASES OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES PROHIBITED.  Lessee shall not release, dispose of, 

or permit a release of, any of the substances described or identified in paragraph 1 onto 
the premises or into the environment surrounding the premises. 

 
5. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE.  Lessee warrants and agrees that, during the term of this 

lease and any extensions thereof, it will take all steps necessary to comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local requirements for the containment, storage, use and 
disposal of any and all hazardous or toxic substances at the premises, including but not 
limited to obtaining and maintaining all necessary federal, state and local permits or 
licenses, and obtaining any required federal or state hazardous waste generator or 
transporter identification numbers.  Lessee shall provide to Lessor a copy of each such 

Page 36 of 88



Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement 
Attachments No. 1 and 2 

existing permit, license, and identification number before occupancy, and shall provide a 
copy of any such permit, license, and identification number which Lessee may obtain in the 
future within seven days of receipt by Lessee.  

6. DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS WASTES.  In the event Lessee has occasion or need to dispose
of hazardous or toxic substances or wastes, and unless otherwise agreed in writing, Lessee
shall retain an independent hazardous waste disposal firm to dispose of any and all such
substances at an off-site facility which has been properly approved, licensed and
authorized to accept such substances.  Lessee shall ensure that the disposal firm is properly
licensed and in good standing with the applicable regulatory authorities for such work, and
that it has all required transporter identification numbers.

7. LESSEE'S WARRANTY OF NO CONTAMINATION.  Except as may be disclosed in
Attachment No. 1 hereto, Lessee warrants and represents (1) that it has not released any
toxic or hazardous substances onto the premises or into the environment in connection
with its activities at the premises, (2) that it has inspected the premises and is not aware of
any indication that a release of any hazardous substances has ever occurred at the
premises, including prior to Lessee's occupancy, (3) that it has never been formally accused
or cited, at the premises or elsewhere, for any violation of environmental laws, regulations
or any hazardous waste-related governmental permit, and (4) that no claims or litigation
have ever been pending against it by any person or governmental agency involving any
use, storage, release or disposal of hazardous or toxic waste.  If any such releases, formal
accusations, citations, claims or litigation against Lessee arise during the term of this lease
or any extension thereof, then Lessee shall notify Lessor in writing within seven (7) days of
such event, and shall provide Lessor with a copy of each document reflecting such event.

8. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS.  Lessee shall indemnify and hold Lessor
harmless with respect to any and all direct or indirect expenses, losses of damages,
including all consequential damages, Attorney's fees, and litigation-related expenses and
costs, incurred by Lessor which result from (1) Lessee's breach of provision of this Rider, (2)
claims, actions, suites, proceedings, judgments, fines or remedial orders (including orders
to clean up contamination at the premises) which arise because of Lessee's breach of this
Rider, (3) Lessee's violation of environment laws or regulations, or (4) Lessee's release of a
toxic or hazardous substance onto the premises or into the surrounding environment.  This
provision shall apply regardless of whether Lessee has been negligent or at fault for such
breach, violation, or release.  This obligation by the Lessee shall survive the expiration or
termination of the lease agreement and the sale of the property.  If Lessor so requests,
Lessee shall accept the tender of defense of, and shall retain counsel of Lessor's selection
and at Lessee's expense to defend, any third-party claim asserted against Lessor in
connection with alleged conduct by Lessee which, if true, would be in breach of the
provision of this Rider.

Page 37 of 88



Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement 
Attachments No. 1 and 2 

9. NOTIFICATION TO LESSOR OF CHANGES IN OPERATION.  Lessee agrees to notify Lessor in
writing at least seven (7) days in advance of any previously undisclosed action which the
Lessee plans to take which poses a material risk of a release of hazardous substance into
the environment, including but not limited to material changes in Lessee's methods of
hazardous waste disposal, material increases in the volume of Lessee's hazardous waste
disposal, or material changes in the nature of any hazardous wastes which Lessee
anticipates it will generate.

10. COPIES OF ENVIRONMENTAL CORRESPONDENCE.  Lessee agrees to provide Lessor with
copies of all past and future correspondence to or form the Washington Department of
Ecology, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and any other government agency
which has had or may have contact with Lessee regarding environmental concerns
pertaining to the premises.

11. NOTIFICATION OF SPILLS OR RELEASES.  Lessee shall comply with all notification
requirements under the applicable federal, state, and local environmental statutes and
regulations, including but not limited to the timely notification of the appropriate
government authorities of any spills or releases of toxic or hazardous substances into the
environment or onto the premises.  Lessee shall notify Lessor within 24 hours of discovery
of any such spills or releases and shall provide copies of all correspondence and documents
related to such spills or releases to Lessor with seven days after receipt or creation, as the
case may be.

12. LESSOR'S REMEDY FOR BREACH OR VIOLATION.  In the event Lessee permits a release of a
hazardous substance to occur at or near the premises, or breaches any provision of this
Rider, Lessor shall be entitled (1) to terminate the lease agreement immediately, (2) to
require Lessee to cease all operation which pose a risk of releasing a hazardous substance
into the environment, and (3) to require Lessee to begin an immediate cleanup of any and
all contamination at the premises to the extent necessary to achieve full compliance with
the applicable environmental laws and regulations.  Lessor shall be entitled to obtain
immediate injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction to enforce this provision.
These remedies shall be in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other remedies
available to Lessor under applicable law.

13. ANNUAL DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE.  Within ten (10) days of receipt of a written
request by Lessor, Lessee shall provide to lessor a declaration of Lessee's compliance or
non-compliance with the applicable environmental laws and regulations and with the
provisions of this Rider, in the form set forth in Attachment No. 2.  Lessor anticipates that it
will request such a declaration annually, approximately on the anniversary date of this
Rider.

Page 38 of 88



 

 
Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement  
Attachments No. 1 and 2 
 

 
14. INSPECTION OF PREMISES.  Lessee agrees to permit and cooperate with any on-site 

inspections and testing requested by Lessor, including inspections and testing conducted 
by consultants or engineers hired by Lessor to evaluate Lessee's compliance with the 
applicable environmental requirements and the provisions of this Rider.  Lessor shall 
provide Lessee within 24 hours advance notice of Lessor's intent to conduct such 
inspection or testing. 

 
15. DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE. ______________, 

whose cell phone number is ____________ shall be the Lessee's designated representative 
who shall be primarily responsible (1) for Lessee's compliance with the provision of this 
Rider, (2) for handling contact with Lessor pertaining to environmental compliance, and (3) 
for signing on behalf of Lessee the annual declaration of compliance pursuant to Paragraph 
12 above.  Lessee shall promptly notify Lessor of any changes in the identity or telephone 
numbers of the designated representative. 

 
16. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 
 _____________________________________________________________ 
 _____________________________________________________________ 
 _____________________________________________________________ 
 
LESSOR:                                LESSEE: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Eron Berg, Executive Director   Brendon Townshend   
Port of Port Townsend     
 
Date: ______________________                       Date: __________________________ 
 

Page 39 of 88



 

 
Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement  
Attachments No. 1 and 2 
 

 (Attachment No. 1 to Hazardous Substances Rider) 
 
 DISCLOSURE BY LESSEE 
 
The Lessee makes the following disclosure pursuant to Paragraph 6 of the Hazardous Substances 
Warranty and Agreement (Attach Additional page(s) if necessary): 
 
1.  Release(s) of Hazardous Substances by Lessee: 
 (If none, initial here:_______) 
 
2.  Indication(s) of Contamination at Premises: 
 (If none, initial here:_______) 
 
3.  Lessee Violation(s) of Environmental Regulations: 
 (If none, initial here:_______) 
 
4.  Environmental Claims or Litigation Against Lessee: 
 (If none, initial here:_______) 
 
Lessee:  BRENDON TOWNSHEND 
 
 
 
 
Signature: ______________________________  Date: ___________________ 
        
 
 
 
 

Page 40 of 88



 

 
Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement  
Attachments No. 1 and 2 
 

 (Attachment No. 2 to Hazardous Substances Rider) 
 
 DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE 
 
_________________, as the designated representative of Lessee primarily responsible for 
environmental compliance pursuant to Paragraph 12 of the Hazardous Substances Warranty and 
Agreement dated: ____________, 2023, hereby declare and represent as follows on behalf of 
Lessee: 
 
1.  I have read, and am familiar with, Lessee's obligations and representations as set forth in 
the Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement applicable to Lessee. 
 
2.  I am not aware of, and do not believe there have been any violations by Lessee of any of 
the provisions in the Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement, or of any requirements 
imposed on Lessee by federal, state or local environment laws and regulations. 
 
3.  I have no reason to believe, and do not believe, that any of the representations in 
Paragraph 6 of the Hazardous Substances Warranty and Agreement are inaccurate as of the date 
indicated below. 
 
4.  Lessee has not stored, used or had present on or adjacent to the premises any hazardous 
or toxic substances except those that have been disclosed in writing to Lessor. 
 
5.  Lessee has not released, disposed of, or permitted the release of any hazardous or toxic 
substances onto the premises or into the environment surrounding the premises, except as has 
been disclosed in writing to Lessor. 
 
Lessee:  company 
                 
 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
       BRENDON TOWNSHEND 
        
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 88



Page 42 of 88



Page 43 of 88



Page 44 of 88



Page 45 of 88



Page 46 of 88



Page 47 of 88



Page 48 of 88



Page 49 of 88



Page 50 of 88



Page 51 of 88



Page 52 of 88



Page 53 of 88



Page 54 of 88



Page 55 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
AGENDA COVER SHEET 

MEETING DATE April 12, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM ☒ Consent Agenda

AGENDA TITLE IV. D. United States Coast Guard, Supplemental Lease Agreement No. 0003

STAFF LEAD Eric Toews, Deputy Director 

REQUESTED ☐ Information ☒ Motion/Action ☐ Discussion

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Staff Memo
B. US Coast Guard Supplemental Lease Agreement No. 0003

Page 56 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
 INFORMATIONAL MEMO  
 

PORT/UNITED STATES COAST GUARD  APRIL 12, 2023 
BOAT HAVEN SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT 003  

DATE: 4/12/2023 

TO: Port Commission 

FROM: Eric Toews, Deputy Director and Sue Nelson, Lease & Contracts Administrator 

SUBJECT: United States Coast Guard Supplemental Lease Agreement No. 0003 and Standstill         
Agreement 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  On October 1, 2016, the United States Coast Guard (USCG) entered into a lease 
agreement for the land located on the spit at the end of Benedict Street. The lease expires on 
September 30, 2023. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Port staff has been communicating with USCG Property Specialist, Mr. Loren Mollner 
regarding a new lease. While negotiations proceed concerning that new lease, the USCG has requested a 
ten (10) month extension to its current lease to align it with the federal budget calendar. Mr. Mollner 
plans to present a proposed new long-term lease to the Port in the Fall of 2023, which, if authorized, 
would commence on August 1, 2024. The USCG anticipates occupying the site for the foreseeable 
future, continuing to make beneficial use of the million-dollar building improvements recently 
undertaken.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize the Executive Director to execute the attached Supplemental Lease 
Agreement No. 003 and Standstill Agreement with the US Coast Guard, extending the lease ten months 
to July 31, 2024. 
 
MOTION:  None required.  Approval of this item on the Consent Agenda authorizes the Executive 
Director to execute the attached Lease Supplement and Standstill Agreement.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• United States Coast Guard Supplemental Lease Agreement No. 003  
• United States Coast Guard Standstill Agreement 

Page 57 of 88



     FORM 

  GSA JUL 87 276 

SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT

DATE  

PREMISES:     

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this date by and between 

Whose address is  

LESSOR: 

BY 
(Signature) (Official Title) 

Approved by:  ___________________________________________________ 
 (Signature)  (Title)  (Date) 

IN PRESENCE OF 

(Signature) (Title) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  

 Loren David Mollner 
 Contracting Officer, US Coast Guard 

BY 
(Signature) (Official Title) 

To Lease No:  HSCG89-16-1-0107

Port Townsend Mooring and Support Facility, Port Townsend,  WA

Port of Port Townsend

P.O. Box 1180
Port Townsend, WA  09368

Hereinafter called the Lessor, and the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, hereinafter called the 
Government:  

The Parties desire to amend the above referenced lease for the consideration hereinafter 
mentioned,covenant and agree that said lease is amended effective upon full execution of this 
document (SLA 0003). 
This agreement grants the Government a lease extension of 10 months, that commences 
October 1, 2023 and expires on July 30, 2024. The rental amount during for the 10 month 
extension term shall be $56,539.30 payable at $5,653.93 per month. 

All payments are subject to annual appropriation being provided by Congress. 

All other terms and conditions of the lease dated 1 October 2016, including SLA 's  0001 
and 0002, shall remain in force and effect. 

IN WHITNESS WHEREOF, the parties subscribed their names as of the above date. 

March 22, 2023NO: 0003
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT

Page 58 of 88

LDMollner
Cross-Out

LDMollner
Cross-Out

LDMollner
Cross-Out



Template number (rev date) 1 of 3 

STANDSTILL AGREEMENT 

 

This Standstill Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement") is made by and between Port of Port Townsend  
(hereinafter "Lessor"), whose address is P.O. Box 1180. Port Townsend, WA 98368, and the United 
States of America (hereinafter "Government"), acting by and through the U.S. Coast Guard. 

 

RECITALS 

1. The Lessor owns certain improved real property located at 205 Benedict Street Spit (hereinafter 
Premises"). The Government currently occupies approximately:  .26_ acres (11,500 SF) of land 
on the Premises and both North and South Sides of adjacent Finger Pier  (approximately  111.1  
square yards) including access to use Coast Guard Owned buildings on the leased premises. 
Pursuant to Lease No. HSCG89-16-1-0107 (hereinafter "Lease"), as amended. The Lease expires 
on 09/30/2023. The Government has not obtained alternative space for its tenants presently 
occupying the Premises and the Lessor and the Government (hereinafter collectively the "Parties" 
and each individually a "Party") have not consummated a lease extension agreement to date. 

2. The Parties do not want an unnecessary condemnation lawsuit and the Government does not want 
its operations, services, or tenancy interrupted or disturbed. Neither Party wants a lease holdover 
and the Parties prefer their negotiations to end with a lease extension at a monthly rental rate to be 
retroactively effective from 10/01/2023. 

3. By this Agreement the Parties seek to preserve the status quo pending the completion of a 
leasehold acquisition procedure that could result in a mutually acceptable lease extension, and by 
the terms of which the Government could continue to lease the Premises from the Lessor. 

4. The Parties believe this Agreement will facilitate settlement negotiations. As evidenced by their 
signatures to this Agreement, the Parties agree that no right, action, or claim either Party may 
otherwise have against the other Party will be prejudiced or waived by this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants set forth herein, 
the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged by the undersigned, the Parties agree as follows: 

During the term of this Agreement: 

1. The Parties agree to negotiate, actively and in good faith, a lease extension for the Premises. 

2. The Government will not condemn the Premises by the power of eminent domain and will not file 
a Declaration of Taking with respect to the Premises. 

3. The Lessor will not initiate an "inverse condemnation" or breach of lease action in any United 
States Court or tribunal with respect to the Premises. 

4. The Lessor will not: 

a. Undertake to evict the Government from the Premises. 

b. Interfere with the use or occupancy of the Premises by the Government. 

Page 59 of 88



Template number (rev date) 2 of 3 

c. Interrupt the operations, building services, or utilities of the Government from what they 
were while the lease was in effect. 

d. Market the space to potential tenants if the Government is planning to remain in the 
premises; or 

e. Threaten to do any of the acts referenced in A, B, C, or D above. 

5. Each Party agrees not to take any action to alter its position to the detriment of the other Party in 
any condemnation type action arising out of these facts. 

At all times after this Agreement becomes effective: 

6. The Government will receive full credit for money paid to Lessor during the term of this 
Agreement in accordance with Lease No. HSCG89-16-1-0107 whether there is a lease extension, 
other legal action, or settlement. 

7. Neither Party will seek or accept severance damages or attorney's fees from the other Party for 
the period this Agreement is in effect. 

8. In the event that a lease extension, with respect to the Premises, is not executed by the Parties 
during the course of this Agreement, or that this Agreement is otherwise terminated, then any 
legal proceeding arising therefrom is stipulated by the Parties to be deemed to have commenced 
on 07/30/2024 

9. Termination of Agreement: The Parties agree that all terms and conditions of the Lease will 
remain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement. This Agreement will terminate 
on the earlier of 07/30/2024 or on the date a lease extension agreement is signed by the Parties. 
This termination provision may be amended to extend the termination date of this Agreement by 
the mutual written consent of the Parties. 

10. Successors in Interest: All of the terms, covenants, and provisions herein contained will bind and 
inure to the benefit of the Parties, their heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors, trustees, receivers, and assigns as applicable, except as otherwise provided herein. 

11. Merger Clause: All prior understandings and agreements with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement, written or oral, are merged into this Agreement. This Agreement represents the final 
agreement between the Parties with respect to such subject matter, and may not be superseded, 
except by a separate written agreement signed and agreed to by the Parties. 

12. Amendments: Neither this Agreement, nor any terms hereof, may be changed, waived, discharged 
or terminated orally, but only by an instrument in writing signed by the Party against whom the 
enforcement of a change, waiver, discharge, or termination is sought. 

13. Construction: Any provision contained in this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable will 
be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or enforceability without invalidating the 
remaining provisions hereof. A waiver by a Party of any right, covenant, condition, or remedy in 
any instance hereunder will not operate as a waiver of such right, covenant, condition, or remedy 
in any other instance, and waiver by a Party of any breach of the terms hereof will not be a waiver 
of any additional or subsequent breach. This Agreement will be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the United States of America. 

Page 60 of 88



Template number (rev date) 3 of 3 

14. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in photocopied counterparts that, when taken 
together, will constitute a single agreement. 

15. Effective Date: This Agreement is effective and enforceable only after having been first signed by 
the Lessor, and second, accepted and signed by the Government. 

 

 

 

 

IN WI1NESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of ____________________. 

 

Lessor: 

 

Signature: _______________________________ 

Printed Name: _______________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

Date: _______________________________ 

 

 

U.S. Coast Guard authorized representative: 

 

Signature: _______________________________ 

Printed Name: Loren David Mollner 

Title: Real Property Specialist  

Date: 3/22/2023 

 

 

Page 61 of 88



Jochems Property Management Lease Amendment No. 3
Placeholder

Page 62 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
AGENDA COVER SHEET 

MEETING DATE April 5, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM ☐ Consent  ☐ 1st Reading  ☐ 2nd Reading  ☒ Regular Business  ☐ Informational

AGENDA TITLE V. A. Updated Organizational Chart

STAFF LEAD Eron Berg, Executive Director 

REQUESTED ☐ Information ☒ Motion/Action ☐ Discussion

ATTACHMENTS 1. Information Memo
2. Organizational Chart

Page 63 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
AGENDA MEMO 

Port of Port Townsend 
Commission Meeting 

DATE: 4/12/2023 

TO: Commission 

FROM: Eron Berg, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: 2nd Reading: Updated Organizational Chart 

ISSUES 
1. Should the Commission approve the requested updated organizational chart?

BACKGROUND 
Under Resolution 786-23 and port practices, the Commission approves the organizational chart and 
the executive director administers day-to-day operations including personnel. 

DISCUSSION 
As discussed at various meetings and in the 2023 budget process, staff are requesting an update to 
the organizational chart that adds one additional FTE, a manager of capital projects position. This 
position would be a professional engineer, licensed in the State of Washington, who would work 
under Matt’s leadership to manage a number of the Port’s capital projects. 

In order to rebuild Port infrastructure and effect the community’s goals for the IDD levy, we need 
more hands on deck. The Port’s adopted 5 year CIP is a $47,621,000 program and that does not 
include all of the projects we are working on such as the Boat Haven Main Breakwater Replacement 
($7.7M) and the Climate Change Resilience, Flood Protection & Waterwalk Project ($30M). Both are 
about to begin design phase work and have possible pathways to construction phase funding. 

For comparison here are the last five years’ capital budgets along with the port’s professional 
engineering staffing: 

5 YEAR TOTAL ENGINEERS ON STAFF 
2019-2023 $12,496,364 0 
2020-2024 $13,006,000 .6 (starting 11/2020)) 
2021-2025 $23,590,361 1.0 (starting 11/2021) 
2022-2026 $40,730,114 1.0 
2023-2027 $47,621,000 1.0 (proposed to increase to 2.0) 

The number of projects that Matt is managing directly today is more than one person can 
effectively oversee. While the Port hires and will continue to hire outside consultant assistance, 
someone must oversee the consultants and keep the projects moving forward, as well as influence 
the project from the owner’s perspective. Consultants alone will not produce optimal projects for 
the Port -- the owner must be involved. 

Page 64 of 88



Memo Page 2 of 3 

The projects that Matt is currently actively managing include (2023 phase noted): 

JCIA 
(1) Airport terminal (design, permit and construction phase)
(2) Fuel system design (JCIA) (design phase)
(3) Taxiway A3 construction (permitting and bidding phase)

BOAT HAVEN 
(4) Boat Haven Main Breakwater Replacement (design phase)
(5) Moorage/yard office (permitting and construction phase)
(6) Boat yard stormwater (design phase)
(7) Boat yard expansion (north) (design and permitting phase)
(8) Boat yard expansion (west) (pre-design and feasibility)
(9) Boat Haven linear dock (need to start design)

POINT HUDSON 
(10) South breakwater (construction)
(11) Buildings (design, permitting and construction)

HERB BECK 
(12) Ramp, bathroom, parking & ADA (design this fall)

GARDINER 
(13) New ramp (permitting and construction)

This is not an exhaustive list, but a list of the more significant and key projects with 2023 phases. 

Value for this addition will come in three key areas: (1) Allow the Port to accept opportunities 
where timing and readiness are critical (i.e., grant dollars); (2) Keeping funded projects efficiently on 
track; and (3) Directly performing work that would otherwise be billed much more expensively 
through consultant agreements (e.g., about 50% of the cost per hour). 

The goal of this addition is to increase capacity to manage capital projects, particularly those funded 
with the IDD Levy. Staff’s proposal in adding this new position is to fund it primarily though the IDD 
Levy (note: time will be tracked so non-IDD eligible projects would be funded differently). Some of 
this person’s time would be reimbursable from grants as well. Our 5 year CIP, current list of funded 
projects and workload demonstrate a need for this position at least through 2027-2028 and 
investing in professional capacity to rebuilt the Port is a good and efficient use of IDD levy dollars 
and other Port resources. 

Staff would like to have someone hired in May. 

Page 65 of 88



Memo Page 3 of 3 

FISCAL IMPACT 
2023: $122,000 
2024: $182,000 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Revised organizational chart

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve the requested updated organizational chart 

Page 66 of 88



PORT	OF	PORT	TOWNSEND	
Organizational Chart 

Executive	Director	Safety & Training Coord.  

Commissioners	
District #1  |  District #2  |  District #3 

Port	Attorneys	

Accounting	Staff	

Payroll/AP  
Billings/AR 	
Clerk of the Board / Admin. 

Asst. 	
Accounting Assistant 

Capital	Projects	
Engineer	

Harbormaster	

Director,	Finance	&	Admin.	
& Auditor	

Security	

Deputy	Director 

Not Yet Adopted 4/3/2023 

NON‐REPRESENTED	EMPLOYEES	

REPRESENTED	EMPLOYEES	

Lease	&	Contracts	
Admin.	

Director,	Capital	Projects		
&	Port	Engineer	

Environmental		
Specialist	

- Maint. Tech II/Specialist

- Maint. Tech II	

- Maint. Tech I

- Custodian

Maintenance Lead	

- Hoist Op. III	

- Hoist Op. II	

- Hoist Op. I

- Laborer	

Yard Lead	

CSR-II (Yard)	 CSR-II (BH)	

- CSR-I	 - CSR-I	 - CSR-I	

- Quilcene Facility 
Attendant

CSR-II (PH)	

Operations	Manager	

Page 67 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
AGENDA COVER SHEET 

MEETING DATE  April 7, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  ☐ Consent  ☐ 1st Reading  ☐ 2nd Reading  ☒ Regular Business  ☐ Informational

AGENDA TITLE  VII. A.  February 2023 Financial Report

STAFF LEAD  Abigail Berg, Director of Finance and Administration 

REQUESTED  ☒ Information ☐Motion/Action ☒ Discussion

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Informational Memorandum

2. Financial Report

3. Notes

Page 68 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
INFORMATIONAL MEMO 

Port of Port Townsend 2023-02-Info Memo-FEB-Financial Report 
Commission Meeting 

DATE: 4/7/2023 
TO: Commission, Executive Staff 
FROM: Abigail Berg, Director of Finance & Administration 
SUBJECT: February 2023 Financial Report 

Attached is the YTD February 2023 financial report of Port activities.  This is a consolidated report that 
shows the variance between the current period as compared to the prior year and the variance to 
budget YTD.  The following is additional information not included in the attached financial report, but 
key in fully understanding the Port’s financial status: 

2023 YTD Project Expenses Budget Year-to-date 
PH Replacement of North & South Jetties  $ 6,000,000    $   1,768,660 
PH – Pavilion Building 0 756 
JCIA – Runway Rehabilitation (a) 0 15,166 
JCIA – 2nd Connector Taxiway (A2) - design 90,000 0 
JCIA – 2nd Connector Taxiway (A2) - construction 556,000 0 
BH Main Breakwater Repairs 400,000 0 
FEMA – PH Emergency Repairs 0 27,399 
FEMA – BH Marina Pavement Repair 0 620 
Reconstruct Old Coast Guard Building 150,000    22,994 
NORTH Yard Expansion (Sims Way) 200,000 308 
WEST Yard Expansion (by Shipyard) 80,000 310 
BH Stormwater Treatment 450,000 6,618 
Gardiner Launch Ramp w/Seasonal Float 110,000 412 
Herb Beck Dredge  20,000 614 
Clean Vessel Build – WA State Parks & Recreation 0 0 
Total Capital Expenses YTD $ 8,146,000 $ 1,843,857 

Non-Capital use of funds 
DNR – Vessel Destruction $  15,687 

2023 Capital Purchases or Contracted Capital Services 
Equipment/Vehicle replacement (total $175,000) 

(2) ½ Ton pick-up trucks $    70,000 $  84,107 
1 Ton pick-up truck 65,000 52,652 
Dump trailer 25,000 0 
Gator (PH)  15,000 0 

Total Capital Purchases or Contracted Capital Services YTD $  175,000 $  0 

Notes to Capital Expenditures 
(a) We are currently in the process of the three (3) grant close-outs with the FAA for this project.

This expenditure is the final payment to Reid Middleton for that work which should be
completed within the month.

Page 69 of 88



Memo Page 2 of 3 

Ending Cash Balances as of February 28 2023 2022 
Reserved Cash & Investments – Other* $ 3,259,864 $ 2,649,994 
Reserved Cash & Investments – IDD  4,471,932 2,228,749 
Unreserved Cash & Investments  1,618,836 1,491,390 
Total Cash & Investments $ 9,350,632 $ 6,370,133 

*Other Reserves detail: Current balance Target balance 
Unemployment Reserve $   10,000 na 
Operating Reserve (a) 1,181,716 $ 1,623,095 
Boat Haven Renovation Reserve (b) 441,517 na 
Emergency Reserve 500,000 $500,000 
Port-Wide Capital Reserve (c) 1,126,631 na 
Total Other Reserves $ 3,259,864 

(a) The target for the Operating Reserve is 25%, or three (3) months, of operating expenses, per
current budget.  See resolution 692-19 for more detail.

(b) The plan for this reserve is to use it on Boat Haven Moorage projects until is it extinguished.  It
was replaced by the Port-Wide Capital Reserve in resolution 693-19.

(c) Resolution 693-19 did not set a target for this reserve.

Debt Service for the Year 
2010 LTGO Bond – (83% paid A/B Dock Reconstruction, 17% paid 75 Ton Lift Pier) 

June 1 – interest only $     73,544 
December 1 – principal and interest 408,544 

2015 LTGO Refunding Bond- (paid for Point Hudson Marina Reconstruction – 2005 LTGO Bonds refunded in 2015) 
July 1 – principal and interest 523,250 
December 31 – interest only   15,750 

Total Debt Service for the year  $ 1,021,088 

Remaining Debt for years 2024-2029 
2010 LTGO Bond – principal and interest $ 2,847,463 payoff December 2029 
2015 LTGO Bond – principal and interest    1,081,800 payoff July 2025 
Total  $ 3,929,363*  

*Port staff hopes to extinguish all debt obligations two years early in 2027.

2021 LTGO Line of Credit (LOC) 
November 2022 1st draw to pay Orion Construction $2,633,967 
December 2022 2nd draw to pay Orion Construction 1,189,677 

Total 2022 Draws $3,823,644 

There have been no additional draws since December.  Dept. of Commerce grant reimbursements were used to 
pay the January Orion Construction bill in the amount of $1,346,260.82, and the February bill for $332,332.03. 

Page 70 of 88



Memo Page 3 of 3 

The 2021 LTGO LOC’s required debt redemptions are due in March, and September each year until the end of the 
bond term, March 1, 2027.  This debt instrument serves as a bridge between project expenditure payments, grant 
reimbursements, and reconciliations with the IDD.  As of 12/31/2022, a debt service amortization schedule was 
prepared by the County Treasurer, though the Port plans to re-pay prior to the schedule outlined in the bond 
issuance.  There are no penalties for pre-payment.  The interest rate on the LOC is 1.55% through March 1, 2025, 
and goes to 1.65% thereafter through the end of bond term. 

Current balance of 2021 Line of Credit $3,823,644 

DISCUSSION 
As requested by Commission. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
NA 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
For discussion only. 

Page 71 of 88



YTD Feb. 

2022

YTD Feb. 

2023

Variance to 

prior year n
o

te
s YTD Budget 

2023

Variance to 

Budget YTD

OPERATING REVENUES

Boat Haven Moorage 301,590     326,017     24,426        325,525         492 

Yard Operations 373,849     437,367     63,518        431,335         6,032 

Boat Haven Properties 140,847     151,564     10,717        152,220         (656) 

Pt. Hudson Marina, RV & Prop 214,426     143,155     (71,271)       142,363         792 

Quilcene 19,437        28,284       8,846          26,381           1,903 

Ramps  3,175          2,050         (1,125)         2,810 (760) 

JCIA 29,125        32,215       3,090          29,684           2,531 

(Incr.)/Decr. In Accounts Receivable 215,038     148,561     (66,477)       - 148,561         

Total Operating Revenues 1,297,488  1,269,211 (28,276)       a 1,110,318     158,893         

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Salaries & Wages 421,993     430,344     8,351          446,689         (16,345)          

Payroll Taxes 43,031        47,686       4,656          46,363           1,323 

Employee Benefits 128,325     137,715     9,390          132,266         5,449 

Uniform Expense 1,797          2,627         830 2,697 (70) 

Contract Services 40,032        65,663       25,631        52,715           12,948            

Legal & Auditing 7,816          1,060         (6,756)         3,732 (2,672)             

Insurance 1,545          - (1,545)         - - 

Facilities & Operations 116,482     113,187     (3,295)         93,117           20,071            

Utilities 66,229        77,257       11,027        84,629           (7,372)             

Marketing 11,198        17,089       5,891          12,521           4,568 

Economic Development 7,500          7,725         225 7,725 - 

Travel & Training 3,547          817            (2,730)         1,533 (716) 

Community Relations - 5,149         5,149          5,000 149 

Total Operating Expenditures 849,495     906,319    56,824        b 888,987         17,333            

Net Operating Income (Expense) 447,993     362,892    (85,101)       221,331         141,561         

Other Increases in Fund Resources

Deposits & Retainage Collected 15,680        23,895       8,215          23,350           545 

Taxes Collected 114,523     117,067     2,544          110,976         6,091 

Capital Contibutions/Grants - 2,465,306 2,465,306   27,000           2,438,306      

Debt Proceeds - Line of Credit - - - - - 

Interest 870 57,182       56,312        422 56,760            

Property & other taxes 273,402     329,413     56,010        233,059         96,354            

Misc Other Incr. in Fund Resources 5,860          13,260       7,401          4,690 8,570 

Total Other Incr. in Fund Resources 410,335     3,006,123 2,595,788   c 399,497         2,606,626      

Other Decr. In Fund Resources

Deposits & Retainage Paid 177 17,355       17,178        - 17,355            

Taxes Remitted 151,060     161,715     10,655        154,110         7,605 

Debt Principal & Interest - - - - - 

Debt Mgmt, Issuance & Misc Exp 43 370            327 80 290 

Election Expense - - - - - 

Total Other Decr. In Fund Resources 151,281     179,441    28,160        d 154,190         25,251            

Net Incr./(Decr.) in Fund Resources 259,054     2,826,683 2,567,629   245,307         2,581,376      

Net Income (Expense) 707,047     3,189,575 2,482,528   e 466,638         2,722,936      

Port of Port Townsend

2023 Summary of Fund Resources & Uses with Comparison to Prior Year and Budget

The accompanying information memo is an integral part of this statement. Summary of Fund Resources Uses, February 2023

Page 72 of 88



02.2023-Notes_to_FEB_YTD_Financial_Rpt 

Port of Port Townsend 
Notes to 2023 Summary of Fund Resources & Uses report 
As of February 28, 2023 

(a) Overall, Operating Revenues are less than YTD February 2022 by $28,276.  This variance is partly
due to the change in Accounts Receivable balances, and partly due to the dip in Point Hudson
revenues as a result of the Jetty project.  The variance to budget is largely due to the change in
Accounts Receivable balances, which is not budgeted.  When removing the change in Accounts
Receivable balances, the variance to budget is about $10,332, or 14%.  The Yard starts the new
year as the leader in revenues, primarily due to the removal of the discounted rate in the 75T
Yard, and Boat Haven Moorage is the next highest when compared to 2022 with an increase of
$24,426.  This is likely due to the Point Hudson permanent moorage customers docking at Boat
Haven during the Jetty construction.  Point Hudson is performing the worst, when compared to
2022, due to Jetty construction, and is almost exactly on budget because this dip was expected.

(b) Overall, Operating Expenses increased by 7%, or $56,824, when compared to 2022. When
measuring performance against budget, Operating Expenses YTD are more by 2%, or $17,333.

(c) Total Other Increases in Fund Resources increased by a whopping 633%, or $2,595,789, when
compared to 2022.  94% of this increase is due to the two (2) Dept. of Commerce grant
reimbursements that were received in January, when they were expected in December, for the
Jetty, that totaled $2,435,000.  Another variance of note, though not as significant, is the
increase in Interest income.  The interest rates were slowing increasing last year during budget
and should have been budgeted at higher amounts.  As such, we’ll continue to see large
variances year to year, and when compared to budget for this line item.

(d) Other Decreases in Fund Resources are more when compared to 2022 by 19%, or $28,160 and
more than budget by 16%, or $25,251.

(e) Overall, the difference in 2023 Net Income (Expense) when compared to 2022 is a $2,482,528,
or a whopping 351%, increase.  As previously mentioned in item (c), this variance is due to the
two (2) Dept. of Commerce grant reimbursements received in January but were expected in
December in the amount of $2,435,000.  If we remove this timing difference in 2023 for those
two (2) Dept. of Commerce grant reimbursements, this is the result:

This shows the actual year-to-year variance is an increase in Net Income (Expense) of $47,528, and a 
more significant increase of $287,936, when compared to YTD budget. 

YTD Feb. 
2022

YTD Feb. 
2023 variance

YTD Budget 
2023 variance

Net Income (Expense) 707,047         3,189,575 2,482,528 466,638         2,722,936 
Less:  Commerce Grants (2) - (2,435,000)    (2,435,000)    - (2,435,000)    

Net Income (Expense) 707,047$      754,575$      47,528$         466,638$      287,936$      

Page 73 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
AGENDA COVER SHEET 

MEETING DATE  April 12, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  ☐ Consent  ☐ 1st Reading  ☐ 2nd Reading  ☐ Regular Business  ☒ Informational

AGENDA TITLE  Informational Items 

STAFF LEAD  Eron Berg, Executive Director 

REQUESTED  ☒ Information ☐Motion/Action ☐ Discussion

ATTACHMENTS 

 February 2023 Detailed Financials

 Contract Update/Lease Brief

 Production Alliance Agreement

Page 74 of 88



YTD Feb. 

2022

YTD Feb. 

2023

Variance to 

prior year n
o

te
s YTD Budget 

2023

Variance to 

Budget YTD

OPERATING REVENUES

PTBH - Permanent Moorage 219,926     236,542     16,615        233,000         3,542 

PTBH - Liveaboard Fee 3,000          4,725         1,725          3,300 1,425 

PTBH - Liveaboard Background Check - 126            126 - 126 

PTBH - Work Float/Lift Pier Usage 798 809            11 835 (26) 

PTBH - Monthly Guest 37,069        32,887       (4,182)         34,783           (1,896)             

PTBH - Nightly Guest 19,906        22,525       2,619          24,396           (1,871)             

PTBH - Electric 18,118        24,396       6,277          26,500           (2,104)             

PTBH - Miscellaneous Revenue 643 1,250         607 683 567 

PTBH - Showers 1,112          971            (141) 968 3 

PTBH - Restroom Key Fobs 50 53 3 80 (28) 

PTBH - Laundry 823 691            (132) 940 (250) 

PTBH - Promotional Sales - 43 43 40 3 

PTBH - Port Labor 145 - (145) - - 

PTBH - Kayak Racks - 1,000         1,000          - 1,000 

Boat Haven Moorage 301,590     326,017     24,426        325,525         492 

Yard - 70/75 Ton Hoist Revenue 32,318        41,177       8,859          35,722           5,455 

Yard - 70/75 Ton Yard Revenue 144,241     219,889     75,648        207,004         12,885            

Yard - 70/75 Ton Yard Enviro Fee 10,480        11,283       803 11,248           35 

Yard - 70/75 Ton Yard Electric 7,723          7,437         (287) 7,992 (555) 

Yard - 70/75 Ton Yard Port Labor 290 932            642 100 832 

Yard - 300 Ton Hoist Revenue 30,817        39,163       8,346          32,371           6,792 

Yard - 300 Ton Yard Revenue 94,868        82,492       (12,375)       87,659           (5,167)             

Yard - 300 Ton Yard Enviro Fee 3,344          4,009         665 3,650 359 

Yard - 300 Ton Yard Electric 10,441        9,004         (1,437)         11,218           (2,214)             

Yard - 300 Ton Yard Port Labor 978 1,440         462 963 477 

Yard - L/T Storage 17,327        - (17,327)       14,100           (14,100)          

Yard - Blocking Rent  8,673          6,716         (1,956)         6,873 (157) 

Yard - Off Port Property Tarp Fee - 642            642 100 542 

Yard - Washdown Revenue 10,045        12,256       2,211          10,300           1,956 

Yard - Bilge Water Revenue 1,905          902            (1,003)         1,601 (699) 

Yard - Liveaboard Fee 400 - (400) 366 (366) 

Yard - Enviro Violations & Clean up - - - 68 (68) 

Yard - Miscellaneous Revenue - 25 25 - 25 

Yard Operations 373,849     437,367     63,518        431,335         6,032 

PTBH Prop - Lease Revenue 130,014     138,468     8,454          139,876         (1,408)             

PTBH Prop - Fuel Dock Lease 2,465          875            (1,590)         2,085 (1,210)             

PTBH Prop - Garbage 603 635            31 1,700 (1,065)             

PTBH Prop - Water 4,045          7,294         3,248          4,696 2,598 

PTBH Prop - Stormwater 1,618          1,571         (47) 1,623 (52) 

PTBH Prop - Electric 113 (291)           (404) 270 (561) 

PTBH Prop - Storage Unit Revenue 1,988          2,224         236 1,970 254 

PTBH Prop - Miscellaneous - 789            789 - 789 

Boat Haven Properties 140,847     151,564     10,717        152,220         (656) 

Pt Hudson - Permanent Moorage 25,659        5,609         (20,050)       5,334 275 

Pt Hudson - Monthly Guest 38,987        945            (38,042)       - 945 

Port of Port Townsend

2023 Summary of Fund Resources & Uses with Comparison to Prior Year and Budget

The accompanying information memo is an integral part of this statement. Summary of Fund Resources Uses, February 2023

Page 75 of 88



YTD Feb. 

2022

YTD Feb. 

2023

Variance to 

prior year n
o

te
s YTD Budget 

2023

Variance to 

Budget YTD

Pt Hudson - Nightly Guest 3,679          1,901         (1,778)         1,780 121 

City Pier & Union Wharf Usage - 20 20 - 20 

Pt Hudson - Monthly R.V. 26,673        20,903       (5,770)         22,950           (2,047)             

Pt Hudson - Nightly R.V. 24,323        19,328       (4,995)         23,260           (3,932)             

Pt Hudson - Kayak Racks 3,368          997            (2,372)         - 997 

Pt Hudson - Electric 6,102          1,252         (4,851)         1,325 (73) 

Pt Hudson - Reservation Fee 3,245          4,521         1,276          3,928 593 

Pt Hudson - Liveaboard Fee 2,781          105            (2,676)         - 105 

Pt Hudson - Liveaboard Backgrnd Ck 540 306            (234) - 306 

Pt Hudson - Showers 558 573            16 304 269 

Pt Hudson - Laundry 1,186          1,117         (69) 1,120 (3) 

Pt Hudson - Miscellaneous 270 (257)           (527) - (257) 

Pt Hudson - Promotional Sales 16 96 80 - 96 

Pt Hudson - Building Leases 69,336        78,396       9,060          73,932           4,464 

Pt Hudson - Property Utilities 7,704          5,977         (1,728)         7,730 (1,753)             

Pt Hudson - Event Facility Rev - 1,300         1,300          - 1,300 

Pt Hudson - Parking - 15 15 700 (685) 

Pt Hudson - Keys, & Key Fobs - 53 53 - 53 

Pt. Hudson Marina, RV & Prop 214,426     143,155     (71,271)       142,363         792 

Quilcene - Permanent Moorage 4,365          11,562       7,197          10,330           1,232 

Quilcene - Monthly Moorage - - - - - 

Quilcene - Nightly Moorage (26) 1,508         1,534          - 1,508 

Quilcene - Showers 340 280            (60) 303 (23) 

Quilcene - Electric 562 420            (142) 492 (72) 

Quilcene - Kayak Rack Storage 55 - (55) - - 

Quilcene - Reservations - - - 11 (11) 

Quilcene - Recreational Ramp Fees 55 415            360 1,000 (585) 

Quilcene - Miscellaneous Revenue 431 - (431) - - 

Quilcene - Lease Revenue 11,668        12,494       827 12,032           462 

Quilcene - Water 1,987          1,447         (540) 2,138 (691) 

Quilcene - Empty Trailer Strg - 158            158 75 83 

Quilcene 19,437        28,284       8,846          26,381           1,903 

Ramp Fees 2,575          2,050         (525) 2,810 (760) 

PTBH Ramp - Commercial Use Fees 600 - (600) - - 

Ramps 3,175          2,050         (1,125)         2,810 (760) 

JCIA - Lease Revenue 21,486        23,794       2,308          22,594           1,200 

JCIA - Hangar Revenue 7,000          7,890         890 6,574 1,316 

JCIA - Aircraft Parking 124 390            266 110 280 

JCIA - Fuel Lease Revenue 149 141            (9) 167 (26) 

JCIA - Electric 365 - (365) 239 (239) 

JCIA 29,125        32,215       3,090          29,684           2,531 

(Incr.)/Decr. In Accounts Receivable 215,038     148,561     (66,477)       - 148,561         

Total Operating Revenues 1,297,488  1,269,211 (28,276)       a 1,110,318     158,893         

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Salaries & Wages 421,993     430,344     8,351          446,689         (16,345)          

Payroll Taxes 43,031        47,686       4,656          46,363           1,323 

Employee Benefits 128,325     137,715     9,390          132,266         5,449 

Uniform Expense 1,797          2,627         830 2,697 (70) 

Contract Services 40,032        65,663       25,631        52,715           12,948            

The accompanying information memo is an integral part of this statement. Summary of Fund Resources Uses, February 2023

Page 76 of 88



YTD Feb. 

2022

YTD Feb. 

2023

Variance to 

prior year n
o

te
s YTD Budget 

2023

Variance to 

Budget YTD

Legal & Auditing 7,816          1,060         (6,756)         3,732 (2,672)             

Insurance 1,545          - (1,545)         - - 

Office/Computer Supplies 5,524          2,200         (3,324)         300 1,900 

Operating Supplies 24,639        19,594       (5,045)         13,536           6,058 

Enviro Materials/Supplies 5,323          108            (5,215)         1,669 (1,561)             

Tarp Pool Expense 7,305          7,376         72 7,000 376 

Empl Recog/Relations 2,026          2,682         656 50 2,632 

Postage 35 - (35) 110 (110) 

Janitorial Supplies 1,736          4,788         3,052          3,214 1,574 

Fuel & Lubricants 3,398          2,292         (1,106)         2,300 (8) 

Permits & Licenses 503 6,041         5,538          1,050 4,991 

Equipment Rental 2,334          11,332       8,998          5,686 5,646 

Claims & Damages 536 - (536) - - 

Membership & Dues 13,245        14,846       1,601          14,000           846 

Bank Charges 18,845        12,084       (6,760)         14,225           (2,141)             

Excise Tax 1,152          1,310         158 1,663 (353) 

Miscellaneous Expense 884 956            72 360 596 

Repair & Maintenance Supplies 28,998        27,579       (1,419)         27,954           (375) 

Facilities & Operations 116,482     113,187     (3,295)         93,117           20,071            

Utilities 66,229        77,257       11,027        84,629           (7,372)             

Advertising (Legal 2018) 3,067          2,956         (112) 1,450 1,506 

Marketing 7,534          9,595         2,061          8,796 799 

Promotion 597 4,539         3,942          2,275 2,264 

Marketing 11,198        17,089       5,891          12,521           4,568 

Economic Development 7,500          7,725         225 7,725 - 

Travel & Training 3,547          817            (2,730)         1,533 (716) 

Community Relations - 5,149         5,149          5,000 149 

Total Operating Expenditures 849,495     906,319    56,824        b 888,987         17,333            

Net Operating Income (Expense) 447,993     362,892    (85,101)       221,331         141,561         

Other Increases in Fund Resources

Yard Deposits Collected - 8,134         8,134          - 8,134 

PTBH Prop Lease Deposits Collected 1,119          1,371         252 12,550           (11,179)          

PH Prop Lease Deposits Collected 673 - (673) - - 

JCIA Prop Lease Deposits Collected 2,309          379            (1,930)         - 379 

PH Marina/RV Deposits Collected 11,578        14,012       2,433          10,800           3,212 

Deposits & Retainage Collected 15,680        23,895       8,215          23,350           545 

Sales Tax Collected 8,013          9,509         1,496          10,782           (1,273)             

Leasehold Tax Collected 106,025     107,174     1,150          99,794           7,380 

Hotel/Motel Tax Collected 486 384            (101) 400 (16) 

Taxes Collected 114,523     117,067     2,544          110,976         6,091 

Grants - Federal Indirect - Dept. of Interior - 18,487       18,487        15,000           3,487 

Grants - WA State - 2,446,819 2,446,819   12,000           2,434,819      

Capital Contibutions/Grants - 2,465,306 2,465,306   27,000           2,438,306      

Debt Proceeds - Line of Credit - - - - - 

Investment Interest 870 57,182       56,312        422 56,760            

Interest 870 57,182       56,312        422 56,760            

Operating Tax Levy 65,636        73,074       7,439          36,802           36,272            

IDD Tax Levy 190,761     230,453     39,693        188,642         41,811            

The accompanying information memo is an integral part of this statement. Summary of Fund Resources Uses, February 2023

Page 77 of 88



YTD Feb. 

2022

YTD Feb. 

2023

Variance to 

prior year n
o

te
s YTD Budget 

2023

Variance to 

Budget YTD

State Forest Revenues 4,275          6,410         2,134          1,000 5,410 

State Timber Excise Tax 9,897          16,410       6,513          5,000 11,410            

Leasehold Excise Tax 2,833          3,065         232 1,615 1,450 

Property & other taxes 273,402     329,413     56,010        233,059         96,354            

Finance Charges 2,651          10,366       7,715          4,540 5,826 

Other Non-Operating Revenues 3,208          2,894         (315) 150 2,744 

Misc Other Incr. in Fund Resources 5,860          13,260       7,401          4,690 8,570 

Total Other Incr. in Fund Resources 410,335     3,006,123 2,595,788   c 399,497         2,606,626      

Other Decr. In Fund Resources

PTBH Prop Lease Deposits Returned 177 17,355       17,178        - 17,355            

Deposits & Retainage Paid 177 17,355       17,178        - 17,355            

Sales Tax Remitted 3,330          4,259         929 4,542 (283) 

Leasehold Tax Remitted 147,585     157,322     9,737          149,450         7,872 

Hotel/Motel Tax Remitted 145 134            (11) 118 16 

Taxes Remitted 151,060     161,715     10,655        154,110         7,605 

Debt Principal & Interest - - - - - 

Bond Management Fees - 170            170 - 170 

Investment Fees 43 200            157 80 120 

Debt Mgmt, Issuance & Misc Exp 43 370            327 80 290 

Election Expense - - - - - 

Total Other Decr. In Fund Resources 151,281     179,441    28,160        d 154,190         25,251            

Net Incr./(Decr.) in Fund Resources 259,054     2,826,683 2,567,629   245,307         2,581,376      

Net Income (Expense) 707,047     3,189,575 2,482,528   e 466,638         2,722,936      

The accompanying information memo is an integral part of this statement. Summary of Fund Resources Uses, February 2023

Page 78 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
INFORMATIONAL MEMO 

DATE: April 05, 2023 

TO: Commissioners 

FROM: Sue Nelson, Lease & Contracts Administrator 

CC: Eron Berg, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: April 12, 2023, Commission Meeting – Commission Update: New/Amended Contracts of 
$100,000 or less, Approved by Executive Director Eron Berg, per Delegation of Authority 
Resolution No. 786-23 

Name Dates Description Amount 
Not to Exceed: 

Evergreen Financial Services 2/16/2023 - Account collections 
agency 

The Production Alliance 3/14/2023 – 9/28/2023 Boatyard BBQ 9/28/23 $14,500.00 
EDC Team Jefferson 1/1/2023 – 12/31/2027 Economic Development $40,000 

annually 

Page 79 of 88



Page 80 of 88



Page 81 of 88



Page 82 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOWNSEND 
AGENDA MEMO 

Port of Port Townsend 4-12-2023 Commission Meeting Page 1 of 2 
Lease Briefing 

 DATE: 4/5/2023 

TO: Commission 

FROM: Sue Nelson, Lease & Contracts Administrator 

SUBJECT: April 12, 2023, Lease Update 

ISSUE 

The purpose of this memo is to keep the Commission informed about existing, planned, and 
potential leases. 

BACKGROUND 

As of the beginning of this month the Port has 42 land leases, 40 building leases, 35 rentals. Vacant 
properties include Point Hudson north duplex rooms. 

DISCUSSION 

Leases expiring in 2023: 
• Key City Fish, 10th St. location, exp 8/31/23 (in process of negotiating new lease)
• Aurora Aircraft (fuel concession), exp 12/31/23

New Agreements: 

Lease Amendments: 
• US Coast Guard, extending lease 10 months. (For approval at this commission meeting.)

Exercising Options: 

Assignments/Assumptions: 
• Scheall/Townshend Lease Assignment, T-hangar pad site at JCIA. (For approval at this

commission meeting.

Terminated/Expired Agreements: 
• Hagen Designs (Point Hudson, Main Building)

License & Use Agreements: 

March Rent Increases: 
• CPI Increase (9%): Kulin/Vizzini-PT Rigging; UW – Sea Grant
• Market Rate Increase: David Pratt; Tom Lemanski; Northup/Hopkins; Scott Wexman
• Step Increase: Skookum

Miscellaneous: 

Page 83 of 88



Port of Port Townsend 3-08-2023 Commission Meeting Page 2 of 2 
Lease Briefing 

• SEA Marine negotiations continue for lease expansion.

ATTACHMENTS 

1. 2023 Lease List

RECOMMENDATIONS 

For information only. 

Page 84 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOW NSEND LEASE LISTING

Boat Haven - PROPERTY

LEASE NAME
Lease 

Amount
Lease  

Expiration
 NEXT CPI/ 
STEP Incr. REMARKS

Admiral Ship Supply 2,027.54 1/31/2025* 2/1/2024 *One 5-yr option available.

Andersen Machine Shop 281.44 9/30/2027 10/1/2023 Land lease. 
Andersen Machine Shop 59.62 Mo/Mo 6/1/2023 228 sf  additional land for storage adjacent shop. 30 day notice for rate increases.

Armstrong Consolidated LLC (Washington)A6 10,079.68 Mo/Mo 30-day notice 30-day notice for rate increases.

Armstrong Consolidated LLC (Washington) 495.39 Mo/Mo 30-day notice Additional space upstairs. 

Armstrong Consolidated LLC (10th St) 3,140.29 8/31/2023* 9/1/2023 *One 1-yr option remains. Assignment of Dave's Mobile Welding Lease.

Armstrong Consolidated LLC (10th St land) 730.08 Mo/Mo 30-day notice Land rental-ground in front of building. 

Blue Moose Café 725.56 10/31/2026* 11/1/2023 *5-yr option available. 24-mo step to market. Step increase.

Cashin, Andrew 201.78 4/30/2023 N/A 6-mo lease- office2D, Nomura Bldg. Sail PT renting seasonally, 5/1/23-10/31/23

Crown Castle (cell tower) 17,928.21/yr 6/30/2025* 6/1/2024 *One 5-yr option remains. Pay one mo in arrears..

Crown Castle - AT&T Sub-Lease 939.12 9/1/2023 Annual lease renewal. 6.5% annual increase 9/2019-9/2022. Pay one mo in arrears.

Eagle Harbor Marine 274.59 Mo/Mo 9/1/2023 Land rental. 30-day notice for rent increases. 

EDC Team Jefferson 836.03 Mo/Mo 7/1/2023 2nd floor Nomura Bldg (767 sf). 30--day notice for rent increases.

Fine Yacht Interiors 1,368.84 5/31/2025* 6/1/2023 *One 3-yr option remains. Exercised 2nd option 6/1/22-5/31/25.

Flye, Todd dba On The Flye 397.08 1/31/2025 2/1/2024 Land lease-temporary structure. No options remain. 

Goolden, Leo (Sampson Boat Co) 1,039.36 Mo/Mo 6/1/2023 30-day  notice for increases. ( M/V Tally Ho project-up to 2 yrs.)

Haven Boatworks 1,421.81 Mo/Mo 1/1/2024 Former J&S Bldg., Haines St. 30-day notice for rent increases. 

Jefferson County   (Commission Bldg) 1,846.38 9/30/2026 10/1/2023 5-yr. 180 day termination notice-either party.

Jeremy Johnson Photography 171.13 Mo/Mo 30-day notice 2nd floor office #2F, Nomura Building.

Jochems Property Mgmt. 326.47 10/31/2026 1/1/2024 Land lease. CPI every two years, next 1/1/2024.

Johnson Fabrication 1,912.54 Mo/Mo 9/1/2023 New mo-mo rental.

Katz, Alan 906.66 Mo/Mo 30-day notice Land lease, business w/temporary shelters. Formerly Dave Thompson's space.

Key City Fish Co. (10th Street-seafood mrkt) 1,927.51 8/31/2023 9/1/2023 Seafood market. 

Key City Fish Co. (Haines PL-refrigeration) 852.58 11/30/2024* 12/1/2023 *Two 5-yr options available.

Kimmel's Crab Shack 2,368.00 4/30/2049 5/1/2023 Land lease. 

Marine Surveys & Assessments Cooperative 1,601.70 1/31/2028* 2/1/2024 * One 5-yr option. Annual CPI/MR beg year 3 and every 3 years after.

NW Maritime Center (Marine Thrift) 665.31 1/31/2024* 2/1/2024 *One-1-yr option remains.

NW School of Wooden BoatBuilding 556.16 6/30/2026* 7/1/2023
*One 5-yr option available. 25% of prevailing rate. Amend 1 adds non-exclusive 
kitchen use.

Octopus Gardens Diving 1,126.40 6/30/2026 7/1/2023 24 mo. stepped rent to achieve market rate. 

Olympic Boat Transport LLC 54.72 Mo/Mo 2/1/2024 Relocated crane next to Pete's Marine. 

Pete Stein & Compass Woodwork 98.32 Mo/Mo 30-day notice 40'x8' land & 7'x8' land for equipment. 

Pete's Marine Metals 1,565.40 7/31/2023* 8/1/2023 *Two 1-yr options available.

Port Townsend Fuel Dock LLC 650.00 6/30/2024* N/A *One 5-yr term remains. 2% flowage fee pays rent.

PT Furniture Clinic 668.19 1/31/2024* 2/1/2024 *One 1-yr option remains.

PT Sailing Association 642.39 11/30/2027* 12/1/2023
*5-year, 2 week +5-year option building lease, Annual CPI; MR beg. year 3 and every 3
years.

Port Townsend Shipwrights, Inc. 8,299.11    7/31/2050 8/1/2024 MR incr 8/1/30-every 10 yrs/ann CPI. Amend 2: Adds land from Baird bldgs purchase
PT Rigging (Kulin & Vizzini) 557.35 3/31/2030 4/1/2024 Land lease. CPI applied 4/1/23

Pt Townsend Yacht Club 295.44 2/28/2026 3/1/2027 Land lease. 

Revision Marine 2,238.81 12/31/2024 1/1/2024 Bldg/Land lease. 

Sands, Guy & Kim (PT Brewing Co.) 3,436.78 5/31/2026* 6/1/2023 *Two 5-yr options remain. Bldg & Land.

Sands, Guy & Kim (PT Brewing Co) 162.00 Mo/Mo 10/1/2023 600 sf outdoor dining area. 

Scow Bay Boats 521.34 9/30/2023* 10/1/2023 *One 3-yr option. Land lease-temporary structure.

Sea J's Café (Estate of Florence Jevne) 1,119.94 Mo/Mo 6/1/2023 Mo/Mo Building & Land agreement. 

Sitewise Design PLLC 160.23 Mo/Mo 6/1/2023 Mo/Mo building agreement for small office 2-H in Nomura Bldg.. 

Skookum Corporation 937.89 3/31/2026* 4/1/2024 Annual step increases/*one 5-yr option/renting 3,036 sf lower floor, Nomura Bldg. 

Stephens Marine 56.16 Mo/Mo 2/1/2024 Temp storage of equipment. Will move to Jochems building soon.
Sunrise Coffee 1,905.19 9/30/2031* 10/1/2023 *Two 5-yr  options available. Deposit balance-6 installments.

Takaki, Jennifer (Marina Café) 620.80 12/31/2026 7/1/2023 5-year lease, stepped rent to achieve MR in 18 mos. Deposit in full.

Takaki, Jennifer (Marina Café) 106.92 Mo/Mo 10/1/2023 396 sf outdoor dining ara. CPI applies.

The Shop Cooperative 5,384.24 5/31/2026* 6/1/2023 *One 5-yr option. Assigned from Pete Stein & Compass Woodwork.

Tree Ring, LLC 142.44 Mo/Mo 3/1/2024 New month/month agreement-small office (2-G) upstairs, Nomura Bldg.

University of WA - Sea Grant 244.86 Mo/Mo 4/1/2024 Office 2-E, Nomura Bldg. Tenancy begins 3/15/22-pro-rated rent. CPI applied 4/1/23

U. S. Coast Guard 5,570.38 9/30/2023 10/1/2023 Annual lease renewal & step increases. 

APRIL 2023
Page 85 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOW NSEND LEASE LISTING

Point Hudson - PROPERTY

LEASE NAME
Lease 

Amount
Lease  

Expiration
 NEXT CPI/ 
STEP Incr. REMARKS

Best Coast Canvas 1,976.94     7/31/2023* 8/1/2023 Armory Bldg. *Exercised 2nd of 3 1-yr options (8/1/22-7/31/23)
Brion Toss Yacht Rigging 887.76        8/31/2024 9/1/2023 Armory Bldg. 5-yr lease, no options. 
Brooks, Cindy 37.80          Mo/Mo N/A 54 sf floor in Armory Bldg thru June to work on wherry for 70/48 race
Commanders Beach House 2,277.52     4/30/2025 5/1/2023 Assignment to D & N Dionne. CPI applied.
Doc's Marina Grill / TNT Restaurants LLC 3,074.53     4/30/2027 5/1/2023 Exercised last 5-yr option 5/1/22-4/30-27. Wants a new 10-yr lease.MR
Fortune Teller Art 374.88        Mo/Mo 8/1/2023 Office #2, Main Bldg., Point Hudson. 30 day notice for increases
GatheringPlace N/A 7/31/2004 N/A Southern half of duplex. Leasehold exempt - Non-profit
Hanson of Port Townsend Inc. 361.69        5/31/2024* 6/1/2023 Armory Bldg. *One 1-yr option remains: 6/22, 6/23, 6/24. 

Hudson Point Café 1,584.53     6/30/2025* 7/1/2023 Main Bldg. *One 5-yr option available. 
Hudson Point Café Office #10, Main Bldg. 276.14        Mo/Mo 7/1/2023 Main Bldg. Restaurant view office. 
Hudson Point Café Office #8 248.53        Mo/Mo 7/1/2023 Main Bldg. Retaurant storage, non-view office. 
Hudson Point Café 117.73        Main Bldg - common area fee-restroom cleaning/stocking
Impact Naval Architects, LLC 279.50        Mo/Mo 12/1/2023 Upstairs office, N. half PH Duplex.
Marine Resources Consultants Inc. 514.44        9/30/2024* 10/1/2023 Armory Bldg. *Used last option.
Mark Kielty Design 276.14        Mo/Mo 8/1/2023 Main Bldg., small view office.
Mark Kielty Design 7.77             PH Main Bldg - common area fee-restroom cleaning/stocking
Northwest Maritime Center 1,399.03     6/30/2051 7/1/2023 Former Landfall site-plan to build 3000 sf classroom. 
Northwest Maritime Center (Swan Hotel) 516.00/yr auto renew 6/1/2024 License-encroachment. MR every 3-yrs. Port may term w/180-day notice

Puget Sound Express 1,157.40     12/31/2025 1/1/2024 No options remain. 
Schooner Martha Foundation 838.11        12/31/2024* 1/1/2024 *One 5-yr option available.

SEA Green Partners d/b/a SEA Marine  2,301.15     4/30/2027* 5/1/2023 *One 5-yr option. Armory Bldg-Upstairs sail loft space.
Shanghai Restaurant 2,585.72     10/31/2026 11/1/2023 No options remain. 
Shanghai Restaurant 174.90        PH Main Bldg - common area fee-restroom cleaning/stocking
Shannon Partners LLC (SEA Marine) 2,345.28     6/30/2027 7/1/2023 Ground lease for SEA Marine facility. 
The Artful Sailor 554.40        11/30/2023* 12/1/2023 Armory Bldg. *One 1-yr options remain. 
The Artful Sailor 468.48        Mo/Mo 3/1/2024 Armory Bldg-NW end of bldg. 
U.S. Customs 3,236.16     12/20/2027 12/20/2024 Hospital Bldg. Accepted 5-yr option 12/2022 - 12/2027. 
Washington Dept. of Fish & Wildlife 8,430.97     3/21/2024* N/A Hospital Bldg. *One 5-yr option.
Washington Dept. of Fish & Wildlife 1,512.90     Mo/Mo 11/1/2023 Cupola Annex-storage.To be rolled in 3/31/24 with main lease at opt dat
Whittiker, LLC 275.88$      Mo/Mo 8/1/2023 Office #1, Main Bldg., Point Hudson. 30 day notice for increases

APRIL 2023
Page 86 of 88



PORT OF PORT TOW NSEND LEASE LISTING

JCIA - PROPERTY

LEASE NAME
Lease 

Amount
Lease  

Expiration
 NEXT CPI/ 
Step Incr. REMARKS

A Hangar Condo Association 1,159.05     11/20/2045 12/1/2023 Land lease. Hangars 'E' & 'F'.
Aurora Aircraft Maint & Restoration 547.57        10/31/2026* 11/1/2023 *One 5-yr option remains.

Aurora Aircraft Maint & Restoration 12/31/2023 N/A
Fuel Concession. If Erickson replaces tank, one more 5-yr 
option available. Port is paid 2%/fuel sales for lease.

Broderson, Dennis 63.53          2/28/2016 3/1/2024 T-hangar pad LEASE
Browning, Scott & Lori 100.00/yr ann. auto renew 8/1/2023 Periodic tree & shrub removal.
Dow Jeffery & Jorja 362.16        12/31/2028 8/1/2023 Land lease. Hangar 'D'.
Eber, Lorenz 80.00          Mo/Mo 1/1/2024 T-hangar pad, #T-404(P)

Erickson, Warren & Karen 189.28        7/26/2057 3/1/2024 Land lease. Hangar '4-B'. 
G Hangar Condo Assoc. 560.44        6/9/2047 7/1/2023 Land lease.
Grandy, Richard 189.84        7/26/2057 3/1/2024 Land lease. Hangar '4-A'. 

H-Hangar Corp., Inc. 520.95        6/22/2049 7/1/2023 Land lease.

Hangar C Group LLC 542.64        4/30/2053 12/1/2023 Settled 2/25/21: Amend #6: Ext. term.
Hood Canal Aviation LLC/Jim Piper 189.28        7/26/2057 3/1/2024 Land lease. Hangar '4-C'. 
JEFFCO Hangar Assoc., Inc. 713.52        11/30/2041 12/1/2023 11,369 sf, hangar site 'I'. 
Jeff. Co. Airport Condo Owners Assoc. 1,939.10     7/26/2057 3/1/2024 Assignment of NW Hangar's Lease for sites #7 & 8. 
K-Hangar Assoc. @ JCIA 530.59        4/25/2049 5/1/2023 Land lease. 
L Hangar Condo Assoc @JCIA 612.27        10/31/2048 10/1/2023 Land lease.
LBG Development, LLC 500.00 fee 4/15/2024* N/A Site 1-Exer. option by 4/15/24-then rent begins/50-yr lease.
LBG Development, LLC 500.00 fee 4/15/2024* N/A Site 3-Exer. option by 4/15/24-then rent begins/50-yr lease.
Lemanski, Tom & Linda 80.00          Mo/Mo 3/1/2024 T-hangar pad, T-405. 2023 adopted rate applied (8¢/sf)

Morrison, Neil/Lark Leasing 174.17        4/30/2053 5/1/2023 Land lease. Hangar 'N-North'. 
Morrison, Neil 174.17        4/30/2053 5/1/2023 Land lease. Hangar 'N-South'. 
Northrup, Mildred/Hopkins 80.00          Mo/Mo 3/1/2024 T-hangar pad, T-406(M). 2023 adopted rate applied (8¢/sf)

Northwest Custom Hangars, LLC(Ward) 500.00 fee 4/15/2024* N/A Site 2-Exer option by 4/15/24-then rent begins/50-yr lease
Port Townsend Aero Museum 395.39        7/31/2052* 5/1/2023 *One 25-yr option. Museum bldg-land lease.

Port Townsend Aero Museum 338.90        7/31/2052* 5/1/2023 *One 25-yr opt. Museum bldg-land lease (expan.).

Port Townsend Aero Museum 582.92        7/31/2052* 5/1/2023 *One-25 yr option. Maintenance bldg-land lease.

Port Townsend Aero Museum 231.78        4/30/2053 5/1/2023 M' Hangar. Separate land lease.
Port Townsend Aero Museum 70.00          Mo/Mo 5/1/2023 T-hangar pad, T-400(S).
Port Townsend Aircraft Services 293.09        6/30/2035*  7/1/2023 *Two 10-yr options.
Pratt Sr., David 80.00          Mo/Mo 3/1/2024 T-hangar pad, T-401(N). 2023 adopted rate applied (8¢/sf)

Puget Sound Express-J Hangar Lease 255.81        10/1/2050 10/1/2023 Assignment-Land lease to Puget Sound Express.
Scheall, Daniel 63.53          2/28/2026 3/1/2024 T-hangar pad LEASE T-402(O)
Spruce Goose 228.63        9/30/2029* 10/1/2023 *Two 5-yr options. CPI/MR apply.
Station Prairie 560.00        4/30/2072 5/1/2023 Hangar site pad #5. Amendment No. 1 increased premises.
Station Prairie 336.00        Mo/Mo 30-day Temporary staging area for hangar construction, site #5.
Wexman, Scott & Diana Levin 275.20        3/31/2053 4/1/2024 Land lease. Hangar 'O'. CPI applied 4/1/23

APRIL 2023
Page 87 of 88



PO RT O F PO RT TO W NSEND LEASE LISTING

QUILCENE - PROPERTY

LEASE NAME
Lease 

Amount
Lease  

Expiration
 NEXT CPI/ 
Step Incr. REMARKS

Canterbury, Ray fluctuates N/A Water rights.
Coast Seafoods 5,747.69$ 12/31/2039 1/1/2024 Land lease. 
Coast Seafoods fluctuates Water.

Quilcene Harbor Yacht Club 515.00$    10/31/2027* 11/1/2023
*One 5-yr option. Rent + 106/hrs in-kind labor. Non-exclusive
use of deck.

Quilcene Harbor Yacht Club fluctuates Water.
Quilcene Village Store 120.07$    Mo/Mo 9/1/2023 Rental of kayak rack & ground it sits on. Mo-to-mo agrmnt.

APRIL 2023

Page 88 of 88


	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes
	Warrants
	Scheall‐Townshend Lease Assignment & Amendment No. 2
	U.S. Coast Guard Supplemental Lease Agreement No. 0003
	Jochems Property Management Lease Amendment No. 3

	Updated Organizational Chart
	February 2023 Year‐to‐Date Financials
	Informational Items
	February 2023 Detailed Financials
	Contract Update/Lease Brief




